Supporting People In Birmingham

Meeting of West Midlands Regional Information Group

13 December 2004

Attendees:
	Laura Hazel, Chair
	Sandwell MBC

	Vaz Arfan
	Sandwell MBC

	Martin Duffle
	Sandwell MBC

	Lee Hall
	Sandwell MBC

	Viv McKay
	Telford and Wrekin Council 

	Sandra Jones
	Wolverhampton City Council

	Pat Brooks
	Wolverhampton City Council

	Mark Paffard
	Sandwell MBC

	Hannah Gladman
	Warwickshire County Council

	John Hodges
	Birmingham City Council

	Carol Jones
	Walsall MBC

	Sarah Drury
	Shropshire County Council 

	Neil Byrne
	Coventry City Council 

	Tony Price
	Staffordshire County Council

	Jennifer Whitehouse, minutes
	Birmingham City Council


Apologies:

	Helen Trousdale
	Staffordshire County Council

	Andrew
	Telford and Wrekin Council 

	Rob Kilby
	Housing Corporation 

	Rosie James
	Warwickshire County Council

	Paul Thomas
	Walsall MBC

	Gay Clance
	

	Jenny Hughes
	Coventry City Council

	Simon Barton
	Solihull MBC

	Sandra Evans
	National Housing Federation

	Val Bourne
	Stoke-on-Trent City Council


1.0
Welcome and Introductions
1.1
Present / Apologies as above.

2.0
Minutes of last meeting

2.1
Page one was agreed as a true record.

2.2
Page two was agreed as a true record.  BID are to be added to a later agenda.

2.3
Page three was agreed as a true record.

2.4
Page four was agreed as a true record.  Point seven was brought forward for matters arising.  Laura Hazel said that she had had further e-mails from Rob and they had agreed to swap attendance at meetings.  There had been a misunderstanding about care-leavers and so there was a need to share information.

2.5
Page five was agreed as a true record.

2.6
Page six was agreed as a true record.  The update on Cross Authority group was brought forward to matters arising.

3.0
Matters Arising

3.1
Hannah Gladman gave an update on the course.  She said it was expensive but half of the cost is to gain a certificate.  She said that the two days from the previous week were very useful.  She said the trainers were excellent and explained some of the detail of the course, specifically the commissioning and strategy for SP.

3.2
Tony Price said that his staff had found it useful.  He said that the decision would be whether the £1,000 plus time lost is worth it.

3.3
Laura spoke about the detail around the Commissioning strategy going into the five-year strategy.  She said there was nothing new as yet but that the course put shape and focus and organised a way forward.  It dealt with relationships and politics but a lot of the course didn’t apply.  Laura said that she would ensure all her review officers attend the course.

3.4
It was agreed that the next step was to examine whether the course is worth £500 (without a certificate).  Tony will send his evaluation to Pat Brooks who in turn will share his evaluation on the course with the other officers who will wait until they have that to make a decision.

3.5
Interest should also be expressed to Pat Brooks.

3.6
Laura spoke about the Benchmarking group.  She said that they had decided to support Andy Meakin’s model of benchmarking and the National Federation have taken it to ODPM.  As yet ODPM have not got a clear idea and so it was agreed not to wait for ODPM and Andy will send around the costings.

Action:  Andy Meakin
3.7
There was some discussion about benchmarking.

3.8
Everyone agreed they were working to the same figures.

3.9
Laura spoke about the regional strategy and the report to the registered housing board.  The strategy should be distributed to the Lead Officers who in turn will send it to others.

3.10
From the feedback Laura said that one of the recommendations is that the steer should come from the WRIG.

3.11
There was some discussion about this.

3.12
It was agreed that the group would ‘rubber stamp’ the report.

3.13
Tony explained that Sandra Evans had spoken to the editor of SITRA about an article from the WRIG.  Sandra is going to draft an article that is upbeat.

4.0
Procurement / Discussion
4.1
Pat Merrick explained that she would like to discuss this issue as she was annoyed at the suggestion that after reviewing services they should all automatically go to tender.  ODPM are assuming that all areas have procurement.  She feels that the work is huge and impractical.

4.2
There was discussion about this.

4.3
It was agreed that it would leave little choice and it would give providers no incentive to bid as well as being a huge cost to the SP admin budget.  However, it was also agreed that it should be looked at and so will be brought forward to the meeting on 14 April 2005.

5.0
Cross Authority Groups

1 West Mercia

5.1
Sarah Drury said that there was little to report.  The group had met twice but it had not really got off the ground.  She explained that she wasn’t aware of history and so far the group had just discussed meetings between two authorities.

5.2
There was some discussion about how to get more authorities to the groups and better attendance.

5.3
It was agreed that Sarah would take to the West Mercia group rural issue and two-tier authority issues and then would represent these at the next WRIG.

2 West Midlands

5.4
Pat (Merrick) spoke about the BCCAP project and said that there was interest from Sandwell, Dudley, Walsall, Wolverhampton, Coventry and Birmingham.

5.5
John spoke about a comment that was later withdrawn from the draft.  He asked for the attendance to support the Chairs and confirm confidence in them.

5.6
Sarah said that the comment might have come from someone not in the group.

5.7
There was a chance for any issues to be raised and recorded formally and also the suggestion that anyone who needs to could approach the Chairs separately.

5.8
It was agreed that there was wholehearted confidence in the Chairs.

5.9
Laura made a personal comment that sometimes issues were ‘rattled through’ at the WMRIG.  If anyone has a view that isn’t aired it need to be bought to someone’s attention.

6.0
Working Groups

Contracts

6.1
Pat (Merrick) said that the group was well attended.  She said they talked about steady state but the group needs a clear re-mitt about what to achieve, how to report back and direction and outcome.  Pat also said that a rep was needed for the group to report back.  She also mentioned that although every authority was invited, not all attended.

6.2
There was discussion about this.

6.3
It was agreed that for every group the lead officer would agree to attend or nominate a person to attend.  It was also agreed this information would be sent to Pat (Brooks).

6.4
There was some discussion about seconding a team to a regional group for
8-12 weeks to get work signed off.

6.5
It was agreed that Viv McKay would lead on contracts and come back to the group with timescales.

Action:  Viv McKay

Training

6.6
Laura spoke about this on behalf of Rosie James.  No one has e-mailed Rosie with his or her training requirements.  It was agreed that all Lead Officers would
e-mail Rosie with their training needs.

Action:  All Lead Officers

Finance

6.7
John spoke about this on behalf of Kevin Hewings.  He explained that the first group was due after Christmas and that he was looking for the finance person from each team to attend.

Budgets

6.8
Laura went round the table and asked everyone to say what cuts they had and the impact of those cuts.

6.9
Tony said that they had lost £30k.  It meant that the authority was unlikely to pay inflation to all, only those who show real hardship.  If there were a same cut next financial year they would be looking to pass it on.  He said the real problem was the cut in admin grant.  They would gain savings from a couple of posts.

6.10
Neil Byrne said they had lost £100k.  Won’t do across the board cuts so the authority are looking at inflation.  He didn’t know about the admin grant but doesn’t think it is significant.

6.11
Sarah Drury said they lost £370k so are quite pleased.  However, there was a 20% cut on admin budget and no carry over from this year.  She said they were in crisis as would have to lose 3 – 3.5 staff and they are currently waiting for a Commissioning Body decision.  The authority is writing to ODPM to tell them what can’t be done.

6.12
Carol said that they got a less than 5% cut and the underspend should carry it forward.  The authority is not looking at cuts and she isn’t sure about paying inflation.  They have negotiated on some contracts and savings.  The impact isn’t great.  The admin grant was cut which was a surprise to the team but they are talking to finance to give them some extra money.  If social services honour the agreement to put in extra funding they should be okay until 2006.  The authority is expecting a positive outcome.  They won £30k.

6.13
John said that they had done well with the admin grant but hadn’t got figures.  He said the SP grant had been cut by 5% of approx £2.2m.  There would be an overall overspend of £6.1m if BCC paid out a 2% inflation figure (which it is considering).  They are currently looking at a process of Joint Impact assessments and the service review were also identifying significant savings, though these won't all materialise immediately.  He said the proposed distribution formula could be good for Birmingham, though at this stage he wasn't banking on it.

6.14
Pat (Merrick) said they had a 4% cut which equates to £235k and £100k into Cross Authority.  They are going to be able to award inflation and absorb cuts.  The authority have had their admin grant cut but there were vacancies in the team.  All the current posts are to become permanent.  They have been told the budget allocation has awarded £100k.

6.15
Vaz said that they had a 4.9% cut which equates to £540k cut.  They would gain under the formula.  The authority has a fairly big overspend which should absorb the cut.  He said there was a significant imbalance for following years.  They are not going to pay inflation and didn’t last year either.

6.16
Pat (Merrick) and John both said that their providers are offering up savings.

6.17
Hannah said they had lost £600k.  They are not making blanket cuts and won’t be offering inflation either.  The Commissioning Body has said any in hardship can have an early review.  She thinks they should be okay.  There is a 20% cut in admin grant, which will mean the temporary posts won’t have their contracts renewed.  They have received £45k, which should make a difference.

6.18
Sandra Jones said that they had a £500k cut and they had no underspends.  They are looking at options other than across the board cuts.  There was a £40k cut in admin grant but they got £32k from the bid.  Sandra said it wasn’t a happy situation.

6.19
There was general discussion around the table about the announcements.

6.20
Viv said that they had a 5.4% cut.  They gave inflation last year but won’t this year.  Savings will be made through reviews and contract reductions.  She said there was a £30k admin cut and an overspend.  They are having a drastic rationalisation and doing an SP restructure.  The authority may take the monies from the IT / Finance teams.

6.21
There was some discussion about the ringfence coming off.

7.0
January Report to Commissioning Bodies
7.1
Laura asked whether an 'annual RIG report' to Commissioning Body's was a good idea and if so how would it be managed.

7.2
There was some discussion about this.

7.3
It was agreed that a report would be drafted and signed off by the Chairs of the WRIG and should include information about the various working groups.

7.4
It was also agreed who would steer / direct the working groups.  Paul Thomas will monitor contracts, Val Bourne will monitor benchmarking, Rosie James will monitor training and John Hodges will monitor finance.

8.0
A.O.B
8.1
Neil Byrne asked where people were at with their five-year strategies.

8.2
There was discussion about the different stages and strategies.

8.3
It was agreed that drafts would be copied round to other Lead Officers as they become available.  The strategies are to be sent to Pat (Brooks) who will forward them on.

Action:  All Lead Officers and Pat Brooks

8.4
This will be brought forward to the next group.

8.6
Tony said that he was leaving SP in four days but wanted to say thank you for the support and assistance in the last six months.

8.7
Pat (Merrick) formally welcomed Tony back as a provider.

8.8
Laura asked if some of the time tabled meetings could be changed providing notice was given.

8.9
This was agreed.

